
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Licensing Panel (Non Licensing Act 2003 
Functions) 

Date: 20 July 2012 

Time: 10.00am 

Venue Committee Room 1, Brighton Town  Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Duncan, Hawtree and Simson 

Contact: Penny Jennings 
Democratic  Services  Officer 
01273-291065 
Penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
 
 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout             

Residents 
Representative 

Responsible 
Authorities 

 

Responsible 
Authorities 

Licensing 
Officer 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Lawyer 

Member Chair Member 

Applicant Applicant 

Residents 
Representative 

Public Seating 

Press 



LICENSING PANEL (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

1. TO APPOINT A CHAIR FOR THE MEETING  

 

2. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes - Where Councillors are unable to attend a 
meeting, a substitute Member from the main Licensing Committee 
may attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 

interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading either that it is confidential or the category under which the 
information disclosed in the report is exempt from disclosure and 
therefore not available to the public. 

 
A list and description of the categories of exempt information is 
available for public inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

3. APPEAL AGAINST REFUSAL OF AN A BOARD LICENCE 1 - 14 

 Report of Head of City Infrastructure (copy attached)  

 Contact Officer: David Fisher Tel: 292065  
 Ward Affected: St Peter's & North Laine   
 

 
NOTE: There may be more than one item on this agenda, and as such 

the item you are interested in may not be heard until later in 
the day. However, the Chairman reserves the right to alter the 
running order of the agenda at the start of the meeting without 
prior notice. 

 



LICENSING PANEL (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.   
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Penny Jennings, (, 
email ) or email democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 

 

Date of Publication - Thursday, 12 July 2012 

 

 

 



Subject: Appeal against refusal of A board licence. 

Date of Meeting:  

Report of: Gillian Marston, Head of City Infrastructure 

Contact Officer: Name:  David Fisher Tel: 29-2065 

 E-mail: David.fisher@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected:  St Peters and North Laine 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 This report is in response to an appeal from Alan Fitchett of North Laine Market 5a 

Upper Gardner Street. 
 
1.2 The appeal relates to the refusal of a highway licence to place more than one 

Advertising board on the public highway more that 5 metres from the premises. 
This is in direct conflict with the highway licensing policy and the principles of 
managing street access for all users.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

That the committee determines the appeal. 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
  

 
3.1 Pre April 2009, the licensing scheme allowed up too two Advertising boards to be 

placed away from the businesses to which they belonged. This resulted in a large 
number of boards left unmonitored and chained to street furniture. It also led to 
clusters of boards appearing at busy junctions. After consultation with 
businesses, disabled groups and residents a number of changes were suggested 
to the highway licensing policy. 

 
3.2 On 24th April 2009, Licensing Committee agreed several changes to the highway 

licensing policy including “That, except in the case of items within large, waiter-
serviced sitting-out areas, no traders’ item shall be permitted to be placed more 
than 5 meters from the licensed premises. All objects must be within sight from a 
window or door of said premises or in clear visual range of CCTV camera(s) 
monitored from within the licensed premises restricting advertising boards to 
within 5m of the premises.”   Licensing Committee also recommended that the 
policy be reviewed by overview and scrutiny committee.  

 
3.2.1 That applications for A-Boards shall be restricted to 1 per premises. 
 
3.3 The report was the result of a review incorporating extensive consultation, 

research and officer experience of managing highway licensing of traders’ 
objects. 

1



 
3.4 The reasons for restricting “remote” A-boards (signs that are placed at a 

large distance from the premises) are: 

• The A-board cannot be easily looked after by the relevant 
premises – e.g. if they blow over or are moved - as they are too 
great a distance to be monitored regularly 

• Allowing A-boards to be placed on adjacent streets to the actual 
premises resulted in large clusters of boards along a single 
street.  These are usually streets that are already very busy with 
high numbers of traders’ objects as well as high numbers of 
pedestrians. 

• Remote A-boards often end up at junctions of busy streets, 
resulting in obstruction for pedestrians trying to cross. 

• Remote A-Boards are more likely to be left out overnight 
chained to street furniture, increasing permanent street clutter 
and any risks to public safety. 

 
3.4.1 Restricting businesses to one board will reduce street clutter. 
 
3.5 In March 2010 report from the Overview and Scrutiny Panel reported on 

the results of the Street Access panel’s findings, which included 
endorsement of the April 2009 changes to the highway licensing policy. 

 
3.6 On 24th June 2010 a report detailing the Street Access Panel’s 

recommendations and officer response to these was agreed at Licensing 
Committee. 

 
3.7 On 26th July 2010 the same report detailing the Street Access Panel’s 

recommendations and officer response to these was agreed at 
Environment cabinet.  

 
3.8 Following the relevant decision-making bodies’ agreement, enforcement 

officers started working to the new policy and approached businesses that 
were in breach of this policy. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 

 
4.1 An equalities impact assessment was carried out during the policy review in 

2009 which involved consultation with a wide range of relevant groups, traders 
and local residents.  

 
4.2 Full consultation was also carried out by the Overview and Scrutiny Street 

Access Panel including a public invitation to submit evidence and 3 public 
meetings where individuals and representatives of various organisations or 
businesses were invited to give evidence. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 

 
5.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with this particular report. 
 

Finance Officer Consulted:  Karen Brookshaw         Date: 06/06/2012 
 
 Legal Implications: 
  
5.2 Section 130 of the Highways Act 1980 imposes a duty on the Council as highway 

authority to assert and protect the rights of the public to the use and enjoyment of 
any highway within its area and so far as possible to prevent the obstruction of 
the highway. However, the highway authority is empowered to licence the placing 
of certain objects on the highway, e.g. A boards under the provisions of Part VII 
A of the 1980, although in doing so it must have regard to the provisions, 
including the Council's duties, of the Disability Discrimination Act 1995. The panel 
must hear the appeal and determine this application having regard to its policy, 
legislation and the circumstances of this application. 

 
 Lawyer consulted:       Rebecca Sidell 
 
5.3 Equalities Implications: 
  

The council seeks to ensure that public highways are used in a manner that 
maximises the benefit to the most number of users.  However in the busiest 
areas of the city competing interests can come into conflict. It is the 
council’s responsibility to manage these interests and to ensure equality of 
access particularly for those with mobility issues. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
  
5.4 There are no sustainability issues identified. 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
  
5.5 There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from this report 
 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
  
5.6 Potential for the council to be held liable if it allows unmonitored items to be 

placed on the public highway. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.7 If allowed then other business who have been refused permission to place 

remote advertising boards would reapply leading to a number of boards being 
placed citywide, normally in the busiest streets. 

3



 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1.  Letter and emails from Alan Fitchett and photos/maps showing proposed location of 

Advertising Boards. 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
 

None 
 
Background Documents 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



(Apendix 1) Email from Alan Fitchett dated 5-5-12 

 

 

Dear Mr Fisher 

 

I thank you for your telephone call returning mine of the day previously and for your 

patient attention to what I had to say. I refer to the telephone conversation of Friday 

4
th

 May wherein I confirmed that as the proprietor of The North Laine Antiques and 

Flea Market, 5 Upper Gardner Street I should like to appeal the Council’s decision not 

to allow us to place remote A Boards to indicate the location of our premises targeting 

casual out of town visitors and which we have displayed with great success for more 

than ten and a half years without incident and initially with the approval of an Officer 

of the Council, Mr Ian Denyer, who I understand is no longer in that position. I 

understand the reason for the Council’s decision as a general principle but as we 

explained those good many years ago to Mr Denyer we believed and still do that the 

display of the boards was essential bearing in mind the location of our premises and 

the difficulty in finding means of advertising to target visitors from many parts of the 

Country and indeed from overseas. This proved to be highly successful and over the 

years I can honestly say that not a week has gone past when a number of visitors have 

actually thanked us for displaying the boards, allowing them to discover our premises. 

Mr Denyer kindly arranged to visit us and asked to be escorted around the sites of the 

boards. He understood our need and expressed his approval of the siting, emphasising 

that we must ensure that the boards were always placed in the same locations and 

monitored regularly to ensure they retained those positions. Until we received a letter 

from the Council Highways department some while ago we rigidly adhered to this 

agreement. When we were forced to remove the A Boards from these locations it 

became almost immediately evident that we were loosing footfall and consequently 

sales. As I said to you on the telephone our figures show a fall in the number of items 

sold on weekdays and Sundays of approaching 50% (or sometimes more) with a 

slightly smaller fall on Saturdays when the street market helps to attract footfall. We 

will not pretend that we have not built up a regular clientele over the years which 

affords some regular trade but the nature of the business requires an additional 

constant flow of new customers like most shops of this type. The problem with our 

location is that the flow of foot traffic tends to be from Bond Street, through to 

Gardner Street and then the enlarged pedestrian crossing to the right of Gardner Street 

leads the casual browser into Kensington Gardens after which the area where our 

main remote board was positioned leads the natural flow into Sidney Street. The 

situation naturally reverses for those approaching from Sidney Street. All of these 

streets have excellent shops of an independent nature and it seems that the casual 

visitor will find and visit these without problem. Our premises is not even at right 

angles to any of these streets so does not allow the natural discovery; we are in fact 

parallel to Kensington Garden just to the west which is why we felt all those years ago 

that there was a need to point to our location along the natural track of the flow for 

those who might be interested. Mr Denyer understood this hence his approval. We 

understand that the Council are trialling signs to help visitors to discover businesses 

off the main thoroughfares and we would support these if it were decided that they 

11



should be located in our area but it would be difficult for these to indicate the location 

of our premises which the boards do, informing those who might be interested that 

they need to turn left, then left again and they will find that in 100 yards or so they 

will find a Market that may well be of interest to them. This is achieved by a bright 

sign with our name and a chalkboard lower section with an arrow and then the words 

below ‘first left then 100 yards’ This may prove to be difficult on alternative signs 

which may well allow the mention of the existence of a business but unless it is 

immediately off the location of the sign would be difficult to provide directions.  Our 

problem is exacerbated by the need to keep our stallholders to allow the business to 

maintain its interest to the public with its ever changing supply of interesting and 

useful goods which can only be achieved by relatively constant sales. Such 

stallholders as any Antiques or Flea Market proprietor will tell are somewhat fickle 

and make decisions as to continuance based on relatively short term results. We have 

already received notice from one stallholder who is unhappy with the fall in sales and 

regrettably if this continues in even a relatively small way the flow away becomes 

unstoppable as each follows the trend. This would very quickly threaten the viability 

of the business and closure would be the only choice which after more than ten years 

of hard work to build up a business which regularly we are told is the ‘favourite shop’ 

of many would be a great shame, a loss to the City and its visitors not to mention the 

loss of jobs and livelihoods and yet another closed and blank premises. We hope that 

the Council will view our appeal with sympathy and understanding and look forward 

to hearing from you further. 

With Kind Regards 

 

Alan Fitchett 

�

12



 

 

 

13



 

 

 

 

 

14


	Agenda
	3 Appeal Against Refusal of an A Board Licence
	Appendix 1 1 Alan fitchett letters
	Apendix 1 2 email from Alan Fitchett
	Appendix 2 north laine market pictures


